MINUTES OF THE WAVERLEY TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MEETING HELD AT WAVERLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CNR PAUL STREET AND BONDI ROAD, BONDI JUNCTION ON THURSDAY, 22 JUNE 2023



Voting Members Present:

Cr P Masselos Waverley Council – Chair

Sgt A Leeson NSW Police – Eastern Suburbs Police Area Command – Traffic Services

Mr J Tukadra Transport for NSW – Network and Safety Officer
Mr D Gojak Representing Kellie Sloane, MP, Member for Vaucluse

Also Present:

Cr L Fabiano Waverley Council – Deputy Chair Cr T Kay Waverley Council – Deputy Chair

Mr N Zervos Waverley Council – Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services

Mr C Yabuka Waverley Council – Manager, Strategic Transport

Mr K Magistrado Waverley Council – Traffic Engineer

At the commencement of proceedings at 10.06 am, those present were as listed above.

Apologies

Apologies were received from Mr P Pearce (Representing Marjorie O'Neill, MP, Member for Coogee), Mr B Gidies (Transdev John Holland – Traffic and Events Manager) and Mr C Hutcheson (Waverley Council – Service Manager, Traffic and Transport).

Declarations of Interest

The Chair called for declarations of interest and none were received.

Adoption of Previous Minutes by Council - 18 May 2023

The recommendations contained in Part 1 – Matters Proposing that Council Exercise its Delegated Functions – of the minutes of the Waverley Traffic Committee meeting held on 18 May 2023 are scheduled to be adopted by Council at its meeting on 27 June 2023.

ITEMS BY EXCEPTION

The following items on the agenda were dealt with together and the Council Officer's Proposal for each item was unanimously supported by the Committee:

TC/C.02/23.06	Birrell Street, Queens Park – 'No Stopping' Zone.
TC/C.03/23.06	7 Busby Parade, Bronte – Construction Zone.
TC/V.01/23.06	Bon Accord Avenue, Bondi Junction – Temporary Road Closure.
TC/V.04/23.06	Murriverie Road, North Bondi – 'No Stopping' Zone.
TC/V.05/23.06	25 Brighton Boulevard, Bondi Beach – Mobility Parking Space – Removal.
TC/V.06/23.06	25 Brighton Boulevard, Bondi Beach – Construction Zone.
TC/V.07/23.06	41 Hall Street, Bondi Beach – Construction Zone.
TC/V.08/23.06	2-8 Campbell Parade, Bondi Beach – Construction Zone.
TC/V.09/23.06	24 Beaumont Street, Rose Bay – Construction Zone.

PART 1 – MATTERS PROPOSING THAT COUNCIL EXERCISE ITS DELEGATED FUNCTIONS

NOTE: The matters listed under this part of the agenda propose that Council either does or does not exercise the traffic related functions delegated to it by TfNSW. The recommendations made by the Committee under this part of the agenda will be submitted to Council for adoption.

TC/C STATE ELECTORATE OF COOGEE

TC/C.01/23.06 Farrellys Avenue, Tamarama - Raised Pedestrian Crossing (A20/0069)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a raised pedestrian crossing in Farrellys Avenue, Tamarama, on the western side of the intersection with Illawong Avenue, as shown in Figure 3 of the report (Option C).
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the design should on-site circumstances warrant changes.
- 3. Applies for relevant grant funding opportunities in the 2023-24 financial year, and if unsuccessful allocates sufficient funds in the Long Term Financial Plan to deliver the safety improvements.
- 4. Notes that:
 - (a) The proposed right turn ban into Bondi Road from Boonara Avenue and Imperial Avenue would have a negligible impact on traffic movements in Farrellys Avenue.

(b) The speed limit in Farrellys Avenue will change to 40 km/h as part of the area-wide speed limit changes to local roads due to be implemented in 2023.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That:

- 1. The Council Officer's Proposal not be adopted.
- 2. Council defers this item to allow officers to consider further options and to prepare a report to the Traffic Committee.

Voting members present for this item: NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

V Brault addressed the meeting.

TC/C.02/23.06 Birrell Street, Queens Park - 'No Stopping' Zone (A14/0145)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council replaces the 'No Stopping' zone on the southern side of Birrell Street, Queens Park, west of Rawson Avenue, with a 'No Stopping, Australia Post Vehicles Excepted' zone.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/C.03/23.06 7 Busby Parade, Bronte - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 9 metre 'No Parking, 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Sat, Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone in front of 7 Busby Parade, Bronte.
- 2. Requires the applicant to notify residents in the vicinity of the construction zone prior to it being installed.
- 3. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V STATE ELECTORATE OF VAUCLUSE

TC/V.01/23.06 Bon Accord Avenue, Bondi Junction - Temporary Road Closure (A19/0714)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Treats the attachments to the report as confidential as they contain information that would, if disclosed, prejudice the maintenance of law.
- 2. Approves the temporary closure of Bon Accord Avenue, Bondi Junction, between Bon Accord Lane and Flood Lane, in accordance with the Transport Management Plan (TMP) and Traffic Control Plans (TCP) attached to the report, subject to the following conditions:
 - (a) Closures are to take place only during the following days and times:
 - (i) Saturday, 16 September 2023, 8.15 am-2.00 pm.
 - (ii) Sunday, 17 September 2023, 8.15 am–2.00 pm.
 - (iii) Sunday, 24 September 2023, 4.00 pm-9.00 pm.
 - (iv) Monday, 25 September 2023, 8.15 am–7.15 pm.
 - (b) The footpath along Old South Head Road is to remain accessible to all people with a minimum clear width of 2 metres.
 - (c) A safe crossing is to be provided at all times for pedestrians and cyclists crossing Bon Accord Avenue at Old South Head Road.
 - (d) The Event Organiser must:
 - (i) Engage a traffic control company approved by the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to implement the TMP.
 - (ii) Facilitate access to residential properties affected by barriers for residents and visitors.
 - (iii) Provide public liability insurance for the event.
 - (iv) Obtain NSW Police approval.
 - (v) Cover all costs associated with traffic control.
 - (vi) Submit the TMP to Transport for NSW (TfNSW) for approval by the Transport Management Centre.
 - (vii) Notify affected residents as shown in Figure 1 of Attachment 1 of the report.

- (viii) Provide a pre- and post-dilapidation report of the condition of footpaths and landscaping along the section of Old South Head Road and Bon Accord Avenue affected by the event.
- (e) Council will issue a schedule of conditions with any additional conditions that may be imposed by the NSW Police, TfNSW and the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services.
- 3. Liaises with NSW Police and other security or safety enforcement agencies in relation to safety precautions or provisions associated with the event.
- 4. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to amend security provisions and traffic control arrangements as necessary prior to, and during, the event.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.02/23.06 Bondi Pavilion, Queen Elizabeth Drive, Bondi Beach - Pick-Up/Drop-Off (PUDO)
Bay (A20/0336)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Replaces the 11.9 metre '1/4P Music Studio Loading Only' zone at Bondi Pavilion in Queen Elizabeth Drive, Bondi Beach, with an 11.9 metre 'No Parking, Pick Up and Drop Off' (PUDO) zone for a sixmonth trial period.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to review any feedback and make an assessment either to formalise the PUDO zone or return the space to a '1/4P Music Studio Loading Only' zone after the six-month trial has elapsed.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to an amendment to clause 1 and the deletion of clause 2 such that the recommendation now reads as follows:

That Council replaces the 11.9 metre '1/4P Music Studio Loading Only' zone at Bondi Pavilion in Queen Elizabeth Drive, Bondi Beach, with an 11.9 metre 'No Parking, Pick Up and Drop Off' (PUDO) zone.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.03/23.06 Wairoa Avenue, North Bondi - 'No Stopping' Zone (A14/0145)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council installs a 'No Stopping' sign on the eastern side of Wairoa Avenue, North Bondi, 15 metres north of Hastings Parade, to reinforce the 'No Stopping' zone, which is currently delineated by yellow line marking.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to an amendment such that the recommendation now reads as follows:

That Council installs a 'No Stopping' sign on the eastern side of Wairoa Avenue, North Bondi, 10 metres north of Hastings Parade, to reinforce the 'No Stopping' zone, which is currently delineated by yellow line marking.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.04/23.06 Murriverie Road, North Bondi - 'No Stopping' Zone (A14/0145)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council installs a 10 metre 'No Stopping' zone on the northern side of Murriverie Road, North Bondi, west of Justus Street.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.05/23.06 25 Brighton Boulevard, Bondi Beach - Mobility Parking Space - Removal (A20/0534)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Removes the mobility parking space in front of 25 Brighton Boulevard, Bondi Beach.
- 2. Installs a '2P, 8 am-10 pm, Permit Holders Excepted Area 6 Area 8' restriction.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police

representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.06/23.06 25 Brighton Boulevard, Bondi Beach - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 12.5 metre 'No Parking, 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Sat, Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction in front of 25 Brighton Boulevard, Bondi Beach.
- 2. Requires the applicant to notify residents in the vicinity of the construction zone prior to it being installed.
- 3. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.07/23.06 41 Hall Street, Bondi Beach - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 9 metre 'No Parking, 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Sat, Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone in front of 41 Hall Street, Bondi Beach.
- 2. Requires the applicant to notify residents and businesses in the vicinity of the construction zone prior to it being installed.
- 3. Temporarily relocates the loading zone in front of 39 and 41 Hall Street 9 metres east for the period that the construction zone is in place.
- 4. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.08/23.06 2-8 Campbell Parade, Bondi Beach - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 21 metre 'No Parking, 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Sat, Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone in Francis Street, Bondi Beach, adjacent to 2–8 Campbell Parade.
- 2. Requires the applicant to notify residents in the vicinity of the construction zone prior to it being installed.
- 3. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/V.09/23.06 24 Beaumont Street, Rose Bay - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 9 metre 'No Parking, 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Sat, Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone in front of 24 Beaumont Street, Rose Bay.
- 2. Requires the applicant to notify residents in the vicinity of the construction zone prior to it being installed.
- 3. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

TC/CV ELECTORATES OF COOGEE AND VAUCLUSE

TC/CV.01/23.06 Boonara Avenue and Imperial Avenue, Bondi - Right Turn Ban into Bondi Road (A21/0178)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Applies to Transport for NSW to restrict the northbound movements on Boonara Avenue and Imperial Avenue, Bondi, to left turn only at Bondi Road by installation of a painted island, 'Left Turn Only' signage and 'No Right Turn' signage at each intersection.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the designs should on-site circumstances warrant changes.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to amendments to clause 1 and the addition of a new clause 3 such that the recommendation now reads as follows:

That Council:

- 1. Applies to Transport for NSW to restrict the northbound movements on Boonara Avenue and Imperial Avenue, Bondi, to left turn only at Bondi Road by installation of an island, BB lines, and 'Left Turn Only' signs at each intersection.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the designs should on-site circumstances warrant changes.
- 3. Officers install informational signage at the intersections of Farrellys Avenue with Boonara Avenue and Imperial Avenue indicating changed traffic conditions of 'Left Turn Only' at Bondi Road.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

Y Super and C Bannenberg addressed the meeting.

PART 2 – TRAFFIC ENGINEERING ADVICE

NOTE: The matters listed under this part of the agenda seek the advice of the WTC only and do not propose that Council exercise its delegated functions at this point in time (though they may or may not require it in the future).

TC/TEAC	STATE ELECTORATE OF COOGEE
Nil.	
TC/TEAV	STATE ELECTORATE OF VAUCLUSE
Nil.	
_	
TC/TEACV	ELECTORATES OF COOGEE AND VAUCLUSE
Nil.	
	NO 01 00 TO 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
THE MEETIN	NG CLOSED AT 11.38 AM.
	SIGNED AND CONFIRMED
	MAYOR
	27 June 2023